
 

 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday June 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the June 20th, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Select Board Vote a Chair and Vice Chair 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) Personnel Matters 
 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  
Please use the podium to address the board.  

b. Mail         
c. Complaints 

 
ITEM #3 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 6/5/2023. 
 
ITEM #4  SIGN WARRANTS  

a. Payroll Warrant #52 in the amount of $50,798.77 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #53 (FY2023) in the amount of $132,058.36 

 
ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Franchise Agreement – Review Draft Ordinance. Schedule Public Hearing. – Discussion from last 
meeting, item tabled.  

b. RFPs for ARPA funded projects. Bunganut Ball Field, Transfer Station, Kennebunk Pond – Discussion, 
next steps, updates, if any.  

c. RFPs for Architect Engineer/ Town Hall Expansion – Review updates 
d. David Corbet – Discussion regarding advertising swim lessons at Kennebunk Pond Tabled from last 

meeting to review ordinances and check with CEO department.  
e. Discuss if closing Town Hall July 3rd and if holding Select Board meeting.  
f. Approve Directive for CEO, Discussed at last meeting.  

 
ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Road Commissioner –  
b. Fire Chief – 
c. CEO –  
d. Tax Clerk – May Report 
e. Treasurer –  Expense Report 
f. Town Hall Expansion Committee –  
g. Other  -  

 
ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discuss results of Annual Town Meeting June 15th, 2023 
b. Schedule Special Town Meeting for Budget Committee Vacancies 
c. Board review – Road Commissioner Job opening 



 

 

d. Committee Application Received – Planning Board (2 applications) 
e. Committee Application Received – Cemetery Committee 
f. Review/Approve Field Use Request Form for S.M.A.S.H 
g. Review/Approve Application for an on-premises license : Town Line Restaurant 

o Request to waive public hearing 
 
 

OTHER 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday June 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 6 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts, David Alves 
Selectboard members absent: Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Public Hearing regarding warrant articles 42 & 43 for Annual Town Meeting scheduled June 15th,

2023
The Select Board opens the public hearing at 6:00pm. There is no public comment. The public
hearing closes at 6:05pm.

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (C) real or personal property matters.
Jessica Picard – Motions to go into executive session for 1.MRSA 405 (C) Real or Personal Property Matters
Jessica Picard – Motions to come out of executive session. John Tibbetts seconds. Motions passes: 4-0-0
The board comes out of executive session at 6:30pm.

1.M.R.S.A §405 (E) Attorney/ legal matters
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to go into executive session 1.MRSA 405 (E) Attorney/ Legal Matters
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to come out of executive session. John Tibbetts seconds. Motion Passes: 4-0-0

Jessica Picard – Motions to waive interest and fees in the amount of $777.50 on account number 1904 with the 
principle due no later than this Wednesday June 7th, 2023.  
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. David Corbet – Discussion regarding advertising swim lessons at Kennebunk Pond

David Corbet – Explains he is interested in posting a small sign at the Kennebunk Pond advertising
his business of swimming and boating lessons. The Lessons are provided at his home located on
Pines Rd. There is more information about what he is proposing at davidcorbet.org. The sign would
be left there seasonally, and he would be responsible for setting it up and taking it down. Because
the beach is owned by the Town of Lyman he is requesting the board’s permission.
David Alves – States we should consult with the Kennebunk Pond Beach committee, the association
and the CEO in regards to whether or not there needs to be a business license or site walk, etc.
Brenda Charland – Recommends looking into the change of use for the property owner’s property.
David Alves – Motions to table this and look into all avenues of how or if this could be done.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion.
John Tibbets – Asks about the class size.
Davit Corbet – States class sizes are small, about five people.
David Alves – Suggests Mr. Corbet contact the Planning Board and get this on their agenda.
Motion passes: 4-0-0

b. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.
Please use the podium to address the board.
Gary Milliard – States the RFP for Bunganut Field Side regarding Earth Works did not specify the
elevation of the parking area or any other specifications of the project. He is a contractor and
wanted to bid on this but was unable to put together a proposal.

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday June 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Steve Lord – States he is with the Lyman Historical Society. He has provided to the Board a display  
that details the first Town Meeting occurring 243 years ago on June 5th. This was back when Lyman 
was known as Coxhall. The display board features the members of the Select Board, Town Clerk, 
Police Chief, and other public servants of the Town.  
Mike Sukalas – States the board asked for the snowmobile club to bring their members to a meeting 
then he was later called a liar. There were statements that the building was in good shape, then 
later it was in disrepair. The board shut down a trail and the club had to pay 3,000 to open a new 
trail.  
David Alves – Clarifies the board was asking for the membership rolls and information about the 
club.  

c. Mail          •York County Budget Memo         •Email 
d. Complaints 

 
ITEM #3 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 5/15/2023. 
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the minutes. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

 
ITEM #4  SIGN WARRANTS  

a. Payroll Warrant #50 in the amount of $24,489.87 
David Alves - Motions to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

b. Accounts Payable Warrant #51 (FY2023) in the amount of $607,725.36 
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve. John Tibbetts seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

 
ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Franchise Agreement – Review Draft Ordinance. Schedule Public Hearing.  
John Tibbetts – States the franchise fee shows up on the gross bill. This ordinance will affect a lot of 
residents in Town. He would like to see more input on it.  
David Alves – States the cable company will take that percentage of franchise fee if the Town 
doesn’t take it.  
Ralph Blackington – States it was explained to the board there is a market cap on charging the 
subscribers. If the Town does not have a franchise fee, the cable company will add that charge to 
the subscribers anyways.  
David Alves – States the franchise fee is not another tax. It may look that way because the cable 
company can write it in the bill to look like a tax.  
Ralph Blackington – States he remembers Tony saying phone companies had special loopholes. He 
doesn’t think the fee goes to the gross bill.  
Jessica Picard – States we can contact Tony to address some of these questions.  

b. Open RFPs for ARPA funded projects. Bunganut Ball Field, Transfer Station, Kennebunk Pond 
David Alves – Makes a motion not to open the RFPs for Earthworks at Bunganut Ball Field until the 
board can clarify the scope of work.  
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 
RFPs Received: 

• RFP Bunganut Park Sports Field Complex – Well Drilling: No bids received.  

 

 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday June 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

• RFP Bunganut Park Sports Field Complex – Concession Stand: 

o BD Carpentry 
Item 1:  $3,500 
Item 2:  $2,940 
Item 3:  $4,990 

TOTAL BID         $11,390 

o KCB Landscaping 

Item 1:  $3,300 
Item 2:  $3,674 
Item 3:  $3,850 
TOTAL BID         $12,024 

• RFP Transfer Station – General Contracting 
o TCD Construction Inc 

Item 1:  $19,708 
Item 2:  $30,485 
Item 3:  $22,000 
Item 4:   $- 

Note: Base bid, site, gen cond, structure $245,922 
TOTAL BID         $318,185 

o Dan cause Construction 
Item 1:  $46,500 
Item 2:  $82,100 
Item 3:  $23,350 
Item 4:   $111,800 

TOTAL BID  $263,750 

• RFP Transfer Station – Electrical Work 
o Bana Corp 

Item 1:  $6,767 
Item 2:  $31,122 

TOTAL BID  $37,889 

o Electrical Controls of Maine 
Item 1:  $14,372 
Item 2:  $23,120 

TOTAL BID  $36,492 DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday June 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 6 

• RFP Kennebunk Pond Beach – Landscape Improvements
o Salmon Falls Nursery & Landscaping

TOTAL BID $189,980 

o GT Scapes
TOTAL BID $110,142.55 

(Note from bidder: All plantings. Excluding trees, are quoted from plant schedule and divided between parking and 
beach access areas until actual placement locations from LA) 

o Electrical Controls of Maine
TOTAL BID $10,000 

(Note: Only “Pedestrian Signal Tower” item was quoted for both beach access and parking area) 

David Alves – Recommends re-evaluating the scope of work for Kennebunk Pond Beach and 
determine if some things can be reduced. They will need to go back out to bid if the scope of work 
changes.  
Jessica Picard – Recommends having Brad Nikel review bids received for the transfer station. 
Ralph Blackington – States he will review bids received for the Sports Field Complex.  

No bids were awarded. 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner –

Brad Nikel – States ditching had been completed on Rustic Lane and Walker Road. A culvert is being
replaced on Howitt Road. Sweeping is all complete. Striping is scheduled in about two weeks. The
salt contract is done and came in $1 per ton less than the last contract.

b. Fire Chief –
Matt Duross – States there are no new updates from last meeting.

c. CEO –
Brenda Charland – States the Planning Board met with SMPDC in a workshop regarding LD2003.
Based off that meeting she found that Lyman was not terribly out of compliance with LD2003. There
are two issues she would like the board to consider. One is there are a lot of additional dwelling unit
applications coming in and with the current ordinance she can only approve an ADU on a
conforming lot. The state says we need to permit any lot with a residence on it provided they meet
the criteria for setbacks, septic, etc. The other is the Ordinance requires meeting double density
requirements for ADU, however with LD2003 this will no longer apply. SMPDC recommended lots
with ADUs can never be subdivided so people can’t try to circumvent subdivision regulations. As far
as a shoreland zone residence, because of the size of these parcels, they would still have to meet all
the dimensional requirements and most of them couldn’t fit more dwelling units and meet the
standard requirements. She requests a directive from the board on the first two matters.

d. Tax Clerk –
e. Treasurer –  Expense Report 6-1-23 – reviewed in agenda packet
f. Town Hall Expansion Committee –

David Alves – Verifies we are still reviewing the bids that came in and waiting for follow up from one
of the bidders.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday June 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 6 

g. Other  - none

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Animal Welfare agreement, review/approve

Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the Animal Shelter Agreement with the Animal Welfare
Society.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

b. Reschedule meeting June 19th, due to holiday.
Discussion with the Board. Town Hall will be closed June 19th, 2023 and the Select Board meeting
will follow on June 20th.

c. Discuss July 4 holiday, Town Hall closures
Lindsay Gagne – Explains some Towns are giving the option to close on Monday July 3rd and allow
employees to use PTO time.
Some discussion with the board to get more input from employees offering a half day and
determining if the Select Board will keep their meeting scheduled on July 3rd.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to table this to the next meeting.
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

d. Committee Request for AV/IT Equipment Use – Bunganut Committee:  Michelle Feliccitti
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve Michelle Feliccitti from the Bunganut Park Committee access
to use the AV equipment for recoding meetings.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

e. Review/ Approve Acceptable Use Policy
Jessica Picard – Recommends removing from the last page “without prior warning or notice” and
suggests changing passwords every 180 days vs 90 days.
Lindsay Gagne – Suggests setting up a training to review this agreement with employees and
committee members and address some of the changes.
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the Acceptable Use Agreement with the above changes noted
to strike out “without prior warning or notice” and changing passwords every 180 days vs 90 days.
David Alves – Second the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

f. Committee Application Received – Bunganut Park Committee (2 applicants)
Jessica Picard - Makes a motion to appoint Holly Wooldridge and Liz Mitchell to the Bunganut Park
Committee
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

g. Committee Application Received – Parks and Recreation Committee
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to appoint Tracie Cyr to the Parks and Recs Committee
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

h. Committee Application Received – Ordinance Review Committee
Lindsay Gagne – States there are no vacancies on the committee at this time, however any
applicants interested will go in a pool of applicants, should a vacancy occur. We’ve reached out to
the Ordinance review committee to address coordinating meetings and if there is an issue with
attendance then to bring that to the board to discuss next steps moving forward.
Jessica Picard – States she wouldn’t mind reaching out the ORC chair to help address any possible
issues.
David Alves – Makes a motion to approve Jessica Picard as a liaison to the Ordinance Review
Committee.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday June 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 6 of 6 

i. Review/Appoint Election Clerks
•Susan Locke, Lorna Henley, Carol Baker-Roux, Kerry Jo Sampson, Joanne Ricker, Jennifer Croteau,
Michelle Tate
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to appoint the following election clerks; Susan Locke, Lorna
Henley, Carol Baker-Roux, Kerry Jo Sampson, Joanne Ricker, Jennifer Croteau, Michelle Tate
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

OTHER 

Lindsay Gagne – States the board will need to decide if they are going to close the Town Hall at 3:00pm on June 30th so 
we can process end of fiscal years processing.  
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve closing the Town Hall at 3:00pm June 30th, 2023 for year end processing.  
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) Personnel Matters
Jessica Picard – Motions to go into executive session per 1.MRSA 405 (A) Personnel Matters
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

Jessica Picard – Motions to come out of executive session. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

ADJOURN 

Jessica Picard – Motions to adjourn. John Tibbetts seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington  

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch  

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 6 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated June 5th, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant









ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant















Cable Television Ordinance 

Town of Lyman 

The Town of Lyman, acting through its municipal officers pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. 

§3008(2), hereby enacts the following Cable Television Ordinance:

Section 1 – PURPOSE 

The purpose for the ordinance is to provide for Town regulation and use of the cable television 

system including its construction, operation and maintenance in, along, upon, across, over and 

under the streets, alleys, public ways and public places now laid out or dedicated, and all 

extensions thereof and additions thereof in the Town of Lyman, including poles, wires, cables, 

underground conduits, manholes, conductors and fixtures necessary for the maintenance and 

operation in the Town of Lyman, of the cable television systems and to provide conditions 

accompanying the grant of franchise; and providing for the Town regulation of cable television 

operation.  

Section 2 – DEFINITIONS 

“Cable Television System” shall have the same meaning as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. §3008 as 

the same may be amended.  

“Cable Television Company” shall mean any person, firm, or corporation owning, controlling, 

operating, managing, or leasing a cable television system within the Town of Lyman, 

sometimes hereinafter referred to as “the company.” 

“Town” shall mean the Town of Lyman, organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Maine and the area within its territorial limits. 

Section 3 – FRANCHISE REQUIRED 

No person, firm or corporation shall install, maintain or operate within the Town or any of its 

public ways or other public areas any equipment or facilities for the operation of a cable 

television system unless a franchise authorizing the use of said public ways or areas has first 

been obtained pursuant to the provision of this Ordinance and unless said franchise is in full 

force and effect.  

Section 4 – FRANCHISE CONTRACT 

The municipal officers of the Town may contract on such terms, conditions and fees as they 

deem in the best interests of the Town and its residents with one or more Cable Television 

Companies for the operation of a cable television system within the Town, including the 

granting of a non-exclusive franchise for the operation thereof for a period not to exceed 

fifteen (15) years.  

DRAFT
ITEM #5: (a.) Franchise Ordinance Draft



Applicants for a franchise of franchise renewal shall pay a non-refundable filing fee of $500 to 

the Town to defray the cost of public notice and advertising expenses relating to such 

application. The applicants may also be assessed the cost of attorney fees incurred by the Town 

of Lyman in connection with the cable franchise application and agreement. The application 

shall be filed with the Town Clerk and shall contain such information as the Town may require 

including, but not limited to, a general description of the applicant’s proposed operation, a 

schedule of proposed charges, a statement detailing its previous two fiscal years, an estimated 

ten year financial projection of its proposed system, its annual Town franchise fee as required 

by the Town, and the basis for same, and a statement detailing the prior operational experience 

of the applicant in both the cable television and microwave service including that of its 

officers, management and staff to be associated with the proposed operations.  

 

Any franchise contract may be revoked by the municipal officers for good and sufficient cause 

as provided in the franchise contract, after due notice to the company and a public hearing 

thereon, with the right to appeal to the Superior Court under Rule 80B of the Maine Rules of 

Civil Procedure.  

 

Section 5 – PUBLIC HEARING  

 

Before issuance of a request for proposals, or during the franchise contract renewal process, the 

Town shall hold a public hearing with at least seven (7) days advance notice for the purpose of 

determining any special local needs or interest regarding cable television.  

 

Applications for a franchise to operate a CATV system in the Town and related 

documents are public records to be filed with and maintained by the Town pursuant to the State 

Freedom of Access Law, 1 M.R.S.A. § 401 et seq., as amended from time to time.  

 

Before authorizing the issuance of any such franchise contract, including an assignment or a 

renewal of a franchise contract, the municipal officers shall review the applicant’s character, 

financial and technical qualifications and the adequacy and feasibility of its qualifications to 

operate a cable television system within the Town, and shall conduct a public hearing thereon 

with at least seven (7) days advertised notice prior to said public hearing.  

 

Section 6 – PERFORMANCE BOND AND INSURANCE COVERAGE  

 

The Cable Television Company shall provide sufficient insurance to indemnify and hold 

harmless the Town of Lyman, its agents and its employees from and against all claims, 

damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising out of or resulting from the 

performance of the work, maintenance of the system and damages caused by components or 

portions thereof, provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to 

bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, 

including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and is caused in whole or in part by any negligent 

or willful act or omission of the Cable Television Company and anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by it or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. Upon the execution of any 

such franchise contract, the cable television company shall file a surety company performance 

DRAFT



bond in an amount to be determined by the Board of Selectmen conditioned upon the faithful 

performance of said contract and full compliance with any laws, ordinances, or regulations 

governing said franchise. Said performance bond shall remain in effect until the Cable 

Television Company has completed any construction or reconstruction of the system as set 

forth in the franchise contract. 

The Cable Television Company shall also, upon execution of any such franchise contract, 

provide evidence of insurance coverage as the Municipal Officers may require.  

Section 7 – COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS 

Cable Television Companies shall at all times comply with all applicable federal, State and 

local laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes and orders.  All applicable 

requirements of public and consumer protection laws affecting the provision of cable television 

services, including without limitation 30-A M.R.S.A. §3008 and§3010, as the same may be 

amended, are incorporated by reference. 

Section 8 -- SEVERABILITY 

Should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, such 

decision shall not invalidate any other section or provision of this Ordinance. 

This ordinance is effective upon its adoption by the Selectboard, Town of Lyman. 

Approved this ____ day of ___________, 2023. 

Town of Lyman by its Selectboard 

________________________Ralph Blackington 

________________________Thomas Hatch 

________________________John Tibbetts 

________________________David Alves 

________________________Jessica Picard DRAFT



6/13/23, 12:27 PM Title 30-A, §3008: Ordinances relating to cable television systems

https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3008.html 1/4

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES

Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES
Subpart 4: ORDINANCE AUTHORITY AND LIMITATIONS

Chapter 141: ORDINANCES

§3008. Ordinances relating to cable television systems
1.  State policy.  It is the policy of this State, with respect to cable television systems:  

A. To affirm the importance of municipal control of franchising and regulation in order to ensure that the

needs and interests of local citizens are adequately met;   [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987,

c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c.

104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

B. That each municipality, when acting to displace competition with regulation of cable television systems, shall

proceed according to the judgment of the municipal officers as to the type and degree of regulatory activity

considered to be in the best interests of its citizens;   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD).]

C. To provide adequate statutory authority to municipalities to make franchising and regulatory decisions to

implement this policy and to avoid the costs and uncertainty of lawsuits challenging that authority; and   [PL

2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD).]

D. To ensure that all cable television operators receive the same treatment with respect to franchising and

regulatory processes and to encourage new providers to provide competitive pressure on the pricing of such

services.   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

[PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD).]

1-A.  Definitions.  For purposes of this section, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms have

the following meanings:  

A. "Cable system operator" has the same meaning as "cable operator," as that term is defined in 47 United

States Code, Section 522(5), as in effect on January 1, 2008;   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

B. "Cable television service" has the same meaning as "cable service," as that term is defined in 47 United States

Code, Section 522(6), as in effect on January 1, 2008; and   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

C. "Cable television system" has the same meaning as "cable system," as that term is defined in 47 United States

Code, Section 522(7), as in effect on January 1, 2008.   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

[PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

2.  Ordinances.  A municipality may enact any ordinances, not contrary to this chapter, governing franchising

and regulation of cable television systems using public ways. Systems located in accordance with those ordinances,

franchises and regulations are not defects in public ways.  



6/13/23, 12:27 PM Title 30-A, §3008: Ordinances relating to cable television systems

https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3008.html 2/4

The municipal officers of municipalities have the exclusive power to enact all ordinances authorized by this section.

They shall give 7 days' notice of the meeting at which those ordinances are to be proposed in the manner provided

for town meetings. Those ordinances take effect immediately.

[PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD);
PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

3. General requirements.  The following requirements apply generally to cable television systems governed by

this section.

A. Any cable television system must be constructed and operated in accordance with Federal Communications

Commission regulations.    [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106

(NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10

(AMD).]

B. Notwithstanding any provision in a franchise, a cable system operator may not abandon service or a portion

of that service without having given 6 months' prior written notice to the franchising municipality, if any, and

to the municipalities affected by that abandonment. When abandonment of any service is prohibited by a

municipal franchise, a cable system operator may not abandon that service without written consent of the

municipal officers. Any cable system operator that violates this paragraph commits a civil violation for which a

fine of $50 a day for each day that the violation continues may be adjudged.    [PL 2007, c. 548, §1

(AMD).]

C. Neither the cable system operator whose facilities are used to transmit a program produced by a person

other than that operator, under Federal Communications Commission regulations or municipal ordinance, nor

the officers, directors or employees of any such cable system operator are liable for damages arising from any

obscene or defamatory statements or actions or invasion of privacy occurring during any program when that

cable system operator does not originate or produce the program.   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD).]

D. [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (RP).]

E. A municipality is entitled to injunctive relief in addition to any other remedies available by law to protect any

rights conferred upon the municipality by this section or any ordinances enacted under this section or section

3010 (../30-A/title30-Asec3010.html).   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD).]

F. Notwithstanding any provision in a franchise, a cable system operator shall offer subscribers the option of

purchasing access to cable channels, or programs on cable channels, individually.   [PL 2019, c. 308, §1

(NEW).]

[PL 2019, c. 308, §1 (AMD).]

4. Franchise procedures.   Pursuant to subsection 2 (../30-A/title30-Asec3008.html), a municipality may

enact ordinances governing the procedures for granting franchises to cable system operators. These ordinances

must be enacted before granting any such franchise or franchises and must be designed to ensure that the terms

and conditions of a franchise will adequately protect the needs and interests of the municipality. The ordinances

must include, but are not limited to, provisions for the following:

A. A mechanism for determining special local needs or interests before issuing a request for proposals,

whether by actively seeking to determine those needs or interests or by allowing a period for public comment

on a proposed request for proposals;   [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C,

https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3010.html
https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3008.html


6/13/23, 12:27 PM Title 30-A, §3008: Ordinances relating to cable television systems

https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3008.html 3/4

§106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8,

10 (AMD).]

B. The filing of franchise applications and related documents as public records, with reasonable notice to the

public that the records are open to inspection during reasonable hours;   [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2

(NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);

PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

C. A reasonable opportunity for public input before granting franchises; and   [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A,

§2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2

(AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

D. The assessment of reasonable fees to defray the costs of public notice, advertising and other expenses

incurred by the municipality in acting upon applications.    [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL

1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989,

c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

[PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD).]

5. Franchise agreements or contracts.   The State specifically authorizes municipal officers pursuant to

ordinances to contract on such terms and conditions and impose such fees as are in the best interests of the

municipality, including the grant of exclusive or nonexclusive franchises for a period not to exceed 15 years, for the

placing and maintenance of cable television systems and appurtenances, or parts thereof, along public ways and

including contracts with cable system operators that receive the services of television signal transmission offered by

any public utilities using public ways for such transmission. A public utility may not be required to contract with the

municipal officers under this subsection. Each franchise must contain the following provisions:

A. The area or areas to be served;   [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C,

§106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8,

10 (AMD).]

B. A line extension policy, which must specify a minimum density requirement of no more than 15 residences

per linear strand mile of aerial cable for areas in which the cable system operator will make cable television

service available to every residence;   [PL 2019, c. 245, §1 (AMD).]

C. A provision for renewal, the term of which may not exceed 15 years. A provision for automatic renewal or

other provision for extending the initial term is prohibited. Franchise renewal is governed by section 3010,

subsection 5‑C (../30-A/title30-Asec3010.html);   [PL 2019, c. 245, §1 (AMD).]

D. Procedures for the investigation and resolution of complaints by the cable system operator;   [PL 2019, c.

245, §2 (AMD).]

D-1. A provision for the use and support of public, educational and governmental access channels, which must

be carried in the same manner and numerical location sequence as are the local broadcast channels originating

from the State and carried on the cable television system pursuant to section 3010, subsection 5‑A (../30-

A/title30-Asec3010.html); and   [PL 2019, c. 245, §3 (NEW).]

E. Any other terms and conditions that are in the best interests of the municipality.   [PL 1987, c. 737, Pt.

A, §2 (NEW); PL 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD); PL 1989, c. 9, §2

(AMD); PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3010.html
https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3010.html


6/13/23, 12:27 PM Title 30-A, §3008: Ordinances relating to cable television systems

https://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3008.html 4/4

[PL 2019, c. 245, §§1-3 (AMD).]

6. Current ordinances and agreements.

[PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (RP).]

7. Model franchise agreement.   The Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Office of

Information Technology, or a successor state agency, referred to in this subsection as "the office," shall develop and

may update and amend a model franchise agreement for use by any municipality and any cable system operator

that mutually choose to adopt the model franchise agreement or any of its provisions. A cable system operator may

not modify or amend the model franchise agreement without the consent of the municipality. The office shall make

the model franchise agreement available on its publicly accessible website. In the development of the model

franchise agreement, the office shall, at a minimum, consider the following issues:

A. Franchise fees;   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

B. Build-out requirements;   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

C. Public, educational and governmental access channels and reasonable facility support for such channels;

[PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

D. Customer service standards;   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

E. The disparate needs of the diverse municipalities in this State; and   [PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (NEW).]

F. The policy goal of promoting competition in the delivery of cable television service.   [PL 2007, c. 548,

§1 (NEW).]

This subsection does not allow the office to establish prices for any cable television service or to regulate the content

of cable television service.

[PL 2019, c. 245, §4 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
PL 1987, c. 737, §§A2,C106 (NEW). PL 1989, c. 6 (AMD). PL 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD). PL 1989, c.
104, §§C8,10 (AMD). PL 2007, c. 548, §1 (AMD). PL 2019, c. 245, §§1-4 (AMD). PL 2019, c. 308,
§1 (AMD).

The Revisor 's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If  you need legal advice, please consult a qualif ied attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster_ros@legislature.maine.gov) · 7 State House Station · State House Room 108 · Augusta, Maine 04333-0007

Data for this page extracted on 9/28/2022 08:27:44.

mailto:webmaster_ros@legislature.maine.gov


Project Description. 

o Complete a design to the existing Town Hall using drafting from C.N.Z Drafting. (CNZ Drafting
agrees to share all CAD drawing with the company that is awarded the contract.)
Architect/ Engineer will include.

- Architectural Design
- Structural Design
- Coordination with the civil engineer
- Review and approval from the State Fire Marshall

o This proposal is divided into phases.

Scope of Work 

Phase One: Schematic Design 

o Develop the preliminary design provided by CNZ Drafting Based on code requirements:

- International Building Code

- NFPA Life Safety Code

- American Disabilities Act

o Ensure compliance with State regulation to qualify as a public refuge.
o Revise the design based on feedback from the building committee.

Phase Two: Construction Documents  

o Further develop the plans into a set of Construction Documents suitable for permitting from the
State Fire Marshalls Office. Construction bids and Construction.

o Final Drawings to consist of:
- Floorplans with all dimensions, proper tags and code related details and notations
- Proper detail of all interior and exterior code elements including bathrooms.
- Full layout of Fire/life Safety items

o The Final Plans will be stamped by a Registered Architect in the State of Maine, also a licensed

structural engineer.

o The awarded company will submit and obtain proper permits from the State Fire Marshall for:

- ADA permit

- Life /Safety

Phase Three: Construction Administration 

The awarded company will provide coordination services between General Contractor and Owner (TOL) 

to respond to questions, alternatives, issues that may arise during construction. 

This will involve site visits to ensure the final plans are being executed properly. 

Clarifications/Assumptions 

The owner will be putting this project Out to Bid to multiple contractors (minimum of three) 

ITEM #5: (c). RFPs Architect Engineer services, bid update



Conditions and Instructions to Bidders 

1. Bidders shall use the enclosed bid form and submit additional information/credentials attached with
bid form.

2. Proposals must include separate line-item costs for any or all the items outlined on the Proposal
form.

3. Proposals must be completed in full and must be signed by a firm official or representative. Proposals
may be withdrawn prior to the time set for the official opening.

4. Proposals will be opened publicly. Bidders or representatives may be present at opening.

4. Issuance of this RFP and receipt of proposals does not commit the Town to award a contract. The
Town reserves the right to postpone receipt date, accepting or rejecting any or all proposals received
in response to this RFP, or to negotiate with any of the consultants/firms submitting an RFP, or to
cancel all or part of this RFP.

5. The Town is exempt from payment of Federal Excise Taxes on the articles not for resale, Federal
Transportation Tax on all shipments and Maine Sales Tax and Use Taxes. Please quote less these taxes.
Upon application, exemption certificate will be furnished with the Purchase Order when required.

6. No contract may be assigned without board approval and contract must be signed by at least three
members of the board.

7. Please state “RFP: Architect/ Engineer Services, Town Hall”, on submitted, sealed envelope.

8. The Town of Lyman reserves the right to waive any formality and technicality, whichever is deemed
best for the interest of the Town.

The Select Board will review sealed bids in an open public meeting and may, at the boards’ discretion, delay 
award pending further review. It should be noted that the contract resulting from this RFP will be awarded to 
the respondent whose proposal is determined to be in the “best interest” of the Town. Therefore, the 
proposal offering the lowest cost may not necessarily be the proposal that is selected for award.  

RIGHT OF REFUSAL. The Town reserves the right to: a) Reject any or all proposals, or to make no award. 

b) Select certain applications from the proposals. c) Require modifications to initial proposals. d) to

make partial or multiple awards. e) award based on initial proposals received, without discussion of such

proposals. f) invite selected vendors to make oral presentations to the evaluations team. Failure of a

vendor to comply with the request for meeting may be grounds for bid rejections. g) excuse technical

defects in a proposal when, in its sole discretion, such as excuse is beneficial to the Town.







TOWN OF LYMAN
11 South Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Tel. 207-247-0642     Fax. 207-499-7563 

selectboard@lyman-me.gov 

June 20th, 2023 

Brenda Charland 

Town of lyman 

Code Enforcement Officer 

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

ceo@lyman-me.gov  

FROM:  The Municipal Officers of the Town of Lyman 

Dear Mrs. Charland,  

With the coming law changes regarding LD 2003 effective July 1, 2023 the Select 

Board recognizes these changes will conflict with the Town’s current zoning ordinance, 

more specifically regarding Additional Dwelling Units and Density. While the Ordinance 

Review Committee works to address these conflicts, it’s evident the Town will not be 

able to comply with appropriate ordinance changes on or before July 1, 2023. The Board 

is giving a directive to the Code Enforcement Office on the following issues. 

Effective July 1, 2023, all applications for additional dwelling unit(s) must be 

considered in accordance with LD2003 provided that all dimensional requirements on a 

conforming lot or a non-conforming lot are in compliance with the Lyman Zoning 

Ordinance lot standards.  

This directive shall remain in effect until the Board votes by a majority vote to end 

the directive or until the Town votes to enact ordinance changes regarding additional 

dwelling units applicable to LD 2003.  

Dated June 20th, 2023 

By a majority vote of the Lyman Select Board 

Ralph Blackington 

Thomas Hatch 

Jessica Picard 

Amber Swett 

Victoria Gavel 

DRAFT
ITEM #5: (f.) Directive for CEO

mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov


Report to Selectmen 

Month of May 2023 

2022-2023 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $7,417,133.10 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     41,542.02    

Total Tax Commitment: $7,458,675.12 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $       4,609.59 

Abatements Granted YTD: $    5,896.80 

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $       968.61 

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $115,348.86 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:   $128,170.74 

Online Rapid Renewal Service      23,346.45 

Total Vehicle Excise   $151,517.19  

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:   $     2,536.30  

Online Registration Service   $___  764.20         

Total Boat Excise    $     3,300.50 

Total Excise   $ 154,817.69 

Excise Tax Reimbursement   10/23/2022    $     9,877.52 

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $1,226,488.14 

Respectfully submitted:  Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #6: (d.) Tax Clerk Report



ITEM #6: (e.) Treasurer Expense Report





















2.0 - Vacancies in Elected Offices 

The office of an elected official other than a member of the Board or an RSU 57 School 

Board Director shall become vacant upon the resignation, death, or removal from office in a 

manner authorized by law or upon forfeiture of office. 

Elected officials shall forfeit their office if they lack any qualifications for the office as described 

by law, by this Charter and by the personnel criteria, or if they are convicted of a felony at any 

time during their term of office  

If a vacancy shall occur in an elective office other than a member of the Board or an RSU 57 

School Board Director, the Board shall call a special election within ninety (90) days of such 

vacancy for the purpose of electing a qualified person to fill the vacancy for the balance of the 

unexpired term. If, for any unseen reason, a vacancy occurs within the first one hundred eighty 

(180) days of the fiscal year, the Board shall hold a special election. A qualified person may be

temporarily appointed by the Board for a period of no longer then six (6) months.

For the office of RSU 57 Director, vacancies shall be determined by 20-A M.R.S.A. § 1474 

90 days  = no later than Monday September 11th 

Filing for nomination papers deadline 60 days prior to election (= July 13th if Election held on 

September 11th) 

Nomination papers to be available until July 13th  

Determine date, time, location and by secret ballot 

A qualified person can be temporarily appointed for not longer than 6 months. 

Budget Committee Vacancies

1x term ending 6/2024 (Effective July 1)

1x term ending 6/2025 (Effective June 13th)

ITEM #7: (b.) Budget Committee Vacancies 



LYMAN PARKS & RECREATION FIELD USE REQUEST FORM 
11 South Waterboro Rd. 

Lyman, Me. 04002 

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: ____________________________________________________ 

TEAM NAME: ________________________________________________________________ 

CONTACT PERSON: ___________________________________________________________ 

EMAIL ADDRESS: ____________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: ___________________________________________________________________ 

PHONE #:(home)___________________ (work)__________________(cell)________________

ALTERNATE CONTACT:_______________________________________________________ 

EMAIL ADDRESS:_____________________________________________________________ 

PHONE #:(home)___________________ (work)__________________(cell)________________ 

FIELD REQUESTED:___________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: ______GAMES   ______PRACTICES  ______LEAGUE  ______TOURNAMENT 

     ______BASEBALL  ______SOFTBALL______SOCCER ______  OTHER 

PITCHING DISTANCE: ______________________ BASE DISTANCE __________________ 

AGE GROUP: ______________________________ #OF PLAYERS:_____________________ 

RESIDENCE OF PLAYERS:_____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

The application must be accompanied with a complete listing of all practices and/or games you 

are requesting with this application.  Include all dates, days of the week and start/end times. 

SIGNATURE:_____________________________________________DATE:______________ 

PARKS & REC. SIGNATURE:_______________________________DATE:______________ 

APPROVED:______________________________________________DATE:______________ 

NOTES: _____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

S.M.A.S.H (Southern Maine Athletic Sports Haven)

TBD

Kristen Cunningham

kristen.cunningham@yahoo.com

226 Walker Rd Lyman, ME 04002

(207)-608-1148 Same

Danielle (Burwell) Day

dday72222@gmail.com

(603)-409-1271

Bunganut Soccer Field on Brock Rd

X X

X
N/A N/A

3-14 Approx 60

Mostly Lyman, as well as, surrounding Southern Maine towns. 

6/6/2023

ITEM #7: (e.) Field Use Request Form



MONTH:________________ 

W/E____________________   

 DAYS:   MON.     TUES.      WED.     THUR..     FRI.      SAT.       SUN.   (PLEASE CIRCLE) 

TIMES: ______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MONTH:________________ 

W/E____________________   

 DAYS:   MON.     TUES.      WED.     THUR..     FRI.      SAT.       SUN.   (PLEASE CIRCLE) 

TIMES: ______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MONTH:_______________ 

W/E____________________   

 DAYS:   MON.     TUES.      WED.     THUR..     FRI.      SAT.       SUN.   (PLEASE CIRCLE) 

TIMES: ______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MONTH:________________ 

W/E____________________   

 DAYS:   MON.     TUES.      WED.     THUR..     FRI.      SAT.       SUN.   (PLEASE CIRCLE) 

TIMES: ______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MONTH:________________ 

W/E____________________   

 DAYS:   MON.     TUES.      WED.     THUR..     FRI.      SAT.       SUN.   (PLEASE CIRCLE) 

TIMES: ______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

August

3rd Week, End of August

10am - 3pm Monday - Friday and Saturday 5pm - dusk

September

All weeks

October

All Weeks

10am - 3pm Monday - Friday and Saturday 5pm - dusk

10am - 3pm Monday - Friday and Saturday 5pm - dusk

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Inserted Text
10am - 3pm 

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval

mnikel
Oval



ITEM #7: (f.) Application for an on-premises license











Ralph Blackington, Select Board 

Thomas Hatch, Select Board

 Jessica Picard, Select Board

Amber Swett, Select Board

Victoria Gavel, Select Board

Lyman, Mainex














